Freedom of Information Act 2000/Environmental Information Regulations 2004 
re: Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs)
Your request for information has now been considered and the Council’s response to your questions is shown below.

You asked:
Parking Enforcement

1. How many Penalty Charge Notices were issued and posted by your organisation last financial year?
Answer:

68,105 PCNs issued between 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022. Posted (Notice to Owners sent) 21,672

2. How many Charge Certificates (related to Penalty Charge Notices) were issued and posted by your organisation last financial year?

15,396

3. How many Order for Recovery's (related to Penalty Charge Notices) were issued and posted by your organisation last financial year?

12,772

4. What was the total postage cost related to posting Penalty Charge Notices, Charge Certificates and Order for Recovery's last financial year? (If this is not feasible to calculate, what was the total postage cost associated with your organisation's parking and traffic enforcement department last financial year?)

£58,625.63

5. How many Penalty Charge Notices issued by your organisation last financial year were related to parking offences?

68,105 PCNs issued between 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022

6. How many Penalty Charge Notices that were issued by your organisation, were paid in full last financial year?

48,313

7. What is the average number of days it takes for a Penalty Charge Notice issued by your organisation, to be paid in full?

The current system is unable to determine this information. We would need to check the payment date for each PCN to calculate the average. This exercise would exceed the cost limit prescribed in the Freedom of Information Act.
Section 12 of the Act makes provision for public authorities to refuse requests for information where the cost of dealing with them would exceed the appropriate limit, which for local government is set at £450. This represents the estimated cost of one person spending more than 18 hours in determining whether the department holds the information, locating, retrieving and extracting the information.

This is therefore a Refusal Notice under section 17(1) of the Freedom of Information Act, because under the provisions of section 12(1) of the Act, the Council estimates that to comply with your request in its current form will exceed the appropriate limit.

8a. Does your organisation print and fulfil Penalty Charge Notices in-house (i.e. by a mailroom owned and managed by your organisation), or is this outsourced to a third party supplier?

The process was carried out in-house until December 2021. This process is now carried out by a third party.
8b. If the answer to 8a is that your organisation outsources to a third party supplier, was the supplier sourced via the Crown Commercial Service purchasing framework?
No
Bus Lane Enforcement
1. How many Penalty Charge Notices were issued and posted by your organisation last financial year?
33,822 issued and posted

2. How many Charge Certificates (related to Penalty Charge Notices) were issued and posted by your organisation last financial year?

2,567

3. How many Order for Recovery's (related to Penalty Charge Notices) were issued and posted by your organisation last financial year?

3,283
4. What was the total postage cost related to posting Penalty Charge Notices, Charge Certificates and Order for Recovery's last financial year? (If this is not feasible to calculate, what was the total postage cost associated with your organisation's parking and traffic enforcement department last financial year?)

This information is withheld by the Council as it is exempt under the provisions of Section 43(2) - Commercial Interests. 

This letter therefore is a statutory refusal notice required by Section 17(1) of the Freedom of Information Act.  

Disclosure of the information would, or would be likely to, prejudice the commercial interests of any person (including the Public Authority holding it).

Nottingham City Council carries out all our CCTV Enforcement and PCN processing; postage is paid for as part of the unit cost for processing LCC’s PCNs.

5. How many Penalty Charge Notices issued by your organisation last financial year were related to parking offences?

Not applicable

6. How many Penalty Charge Notices that were issued by your organisation, were paid in full last financial year?

Please note when PCNs are issued there is a discount period of 14 days to pay at £30 otherwise the PCN is served at full charge at £60, then escalates to £90 and then £98 and now £99 after an increase of order of recovery from £98. Please see the breakdown of how many cases were paid on full:- 

23,144 PCNs paid at £30

1,433 PCNs paid at £60

774 PCNS Paid at £90

287 PCNs paid at £98

92 PCNS paid at £99

7. What is the average number of days it takes for a Penalty Charge Notice issued by your organisation, to be paid in full?

28 days to pay at full charge at £60

8a. Does your organisation print and fulfil Penalty Charge Notices in-house (i.e. by a mailroom owned and managed by your organisation), or is this outsourced to a third party supplier?

Outsourced 

8b. If the answer to 8a is that your organisation outsources to a third party supplier, was the supplier sourced via the Crown Commercial Service purchasing framework?
No

You may re-use the information under an Open Government Licence.
If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, please write, explaining your grounds of appeal, to: 

Internal Review

Information Governance & Risk
Email: info.requests@leicester.gov.uk
